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This document contains all Questions and Answers submitted about DCYF’s FY18/19 RFP from February 19th - March 4th, 2019. The questions are being provided as 
they were submitted including any spelling errors or grammatical mistakes. DCYF did not make any correction to the question text. If a question was not 
understood in its submitted form DCYF contacted the question asker and requested they resubmit the question. 
 

Submitted Question DCYF Answer 

I am having a hard time finding the RFP for the following program:  
"Enrichment, Leadership & Skill Building (ELS): Sports and Physical Activity" 
due on March 18 for the 2019-2023 funding cycle. Th  the link in the February 
newsletter sends me to the 2018-2023 funding cycle RFPs. 
 
Please let me know where I can find the current RFP for this program, or if it is 
the same as the 2018-2023 cycle. 

All potential applicants for the FY18/19 RFP must register using our online 
system to access the RFP document. This requirement is in place in case DCYF 
needs to notify potential applicants of any revisions to the document. The link 
for the RFP database is located on our website here: 
https://www.dcyf.org/index.aspx?page=298. 

As we are already under contract with DCYF, I just wanted to make sure that 
we could also apply to the Enrichment, Leadership & Skill Building (ELS): Sports 
and Physical Activity. 

Any potential applicants who meet the requirements for the RFP listed in the 
document are welcome to apply. The only restriction to note for current 
grantees related to this RFP is listed on page 19 and states "Grantees funded 
under the Cultural Programming, Girls’ and Young Women’s Programming and 
Multi-Service strategies who reallocated grant funds to the Connective 
Services strategy during the January 2019 reallocation process are not eligible 
to apply for funding under this strategy." 

The RFP provides funding from July, 2019 - June, 2023: Does this mean that 
you are looking for applicants to propose multi-year projects from 2019-2023? 
Also, does this mean that this RFP on physical activity only comes out once 
(now) and then again in 2023 or is this a funding opportunity that will come 
out annually (e.g. could we apply in 2020 if we did not apply this year)? 

DCYF is looking for applicants to propose program models that meet the 
requirements of the chosen funding strategy. While the funding spans a term 
of 4 fiscal years the expectation is that a single program model will be funded 
for that time. 
DCYF's 2018-23 RFP and RFQ, released in July 2017, provided funding for our 
Sports and Physical Activity funding strategy. While we are once again 
providing funding for this strategy, we typically do not provide that funding 
annually and therefore, at present, we do not anticipate releasing another RFP 
for Sports and Physical Activity during the funding cycle that ends in 2023. 

The RFP states that funds can only support SF youth and family residents. If we 
have programs that serve SF residents and residents in other Bay Area cities---
but only use funds for the portion of projects that supports SF participants--
can we still apply? 

Yes, DCYF's Charter requires the funds we distribute to be used only for San 
Francisco residents. If agencies have other funding sources that allow them to 
serve non San Francisco residents they can still receive a DCYF grant as long as 
the funds we provide are only used for San Francisco residents. 
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Submitted Question DCYF Answer 

Does the grant allow for new partnership development phase - or are we only 
competitive if we apply in collaboration with existing/long-established 
partners? 

DCYF is not offering a Planning Period for the Connective Services or Sports 
and Physical Activity funding strategies in this RFP. Applicants can still develop 
new partnerships but the expectation will be that services are able to begin as 
soon as July 1, 2019. 

Can single applications aim to serve more than one target population? Ex: A 
strategy that includes both K-5 + 6-8th students? 

Yes, applicants for both Sports and Physical Activity and Connective Services 
can choose to serve any combination of the listed targeted populations for the 
strategy they are applying for. 

My organization has programs for both ELS and mentorship. Should we submit 
two applications, one for each? 

Yes, applicants must submit separate applications for each strategy they are 
applying for. 

My organization has a vendor ID with SFUSD. Is that valid for this grant 
application? 

No, as stated on page 6 of the RFP document "Organizations must be 
approved City vendors by the release of award decisions (tentatively 
scheduled for May 24th, 2019) to receive funding under this RFP." SFUSD 
Vendor ID's do not satisfy the requirement to be a City Vendor. 

Can you apply to both the sports + physical activity strategy + connective 
services? 

Yes, applicants can choose to apply to any strategy in the FY18/19 RFP as long 
as they are able to fulfill its requirements. Applicants must submit separate 
applications for each strategy they are applying for. 

What is the exact difference between direct service provider and support 
staff? 

Direct service providers engage with program participants as the core part of 
their job responsibilities. They are the key components of a program’s service 
model. Support staff work within a program, but are less directly engaged with 
the participants. Their core duties are to provide needed program support and 
complete basic administrative functions. 

When the budget asks for "total yearly hours", do they mean total for the 4 
years, or only 1 year? 

All budget information provided with applications to this RFP should be based 
on single year estimates of program costs. 

Is the program intended for year round or only during the school year? DCYF has not specified whether services must occur during the school year, 
year round or both. Instead applicants can choose to propose the timeframe 
for their programs. 
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Submitted Question DCYF Answer 

If we have been awarded a Community Grant that was categorized under the 
Connective Services Strategy area, are we eligible to apply in the Mentorship 
Service Area? 

No, grantees currently funded under the Connective Services strategy are not 
eligible to apply for the strategy in this RFP.  This restriction is similar to the 
one listed on page 19 of the RFP which states  "Grantees funded under the 
Cultural Programming, Girls’ and Young Women’s Programming and Multi-
Service strategies who reallocated grant funds to the Connective Services 
strategy during the January 2019 reallocation process are not eligible to apply 
for funding under this strategy." 

When we say we will partner with other agencies and accept referral sources, 
are we required to have MOU's in place and if so, is this required before the 
proposal is submitted? We have a mix of both MOU, letter of support, and 
(majority) informal partnerships with other CBO's and accept referrals from 
schools, programs and families that find us on their own. We may partner with 
related youth organizations for 1 or 2 events a year, exposing them to other 
programs and facilitating connections/applications as needed. 

No, for the strategies listed in this RFP DCYF is not requiring applicants to have 
MOU's with referral sources before they submit their proposals. DCYF does 
recommend that programs have relationships with their referral sources but 
recognizes that they may not be in the form of a formal MOU. 

Incentives and other New Initiatives - we currently do not offer them but our 
youth periodically request them, can we write them into our proposal to 
begin? Broader question is how much of the proposal can be for 
existing/proven programs vs anything new that we want to launch? 

Yes, applicants can propose program budgets that include participant 
incentives. 
Applicants can submit proposals that are either for new programs or for those 
that at are currently in existence. There is however, one caveat. Grantees 
currently funded under the Connective Services strategy are not eligible to 
apply for the strategy in this RFP.  This restriction would include grantees 
funded under the Cultural Programming, Girls’ and Young Women’s 
Programming and Multi-Service strategies who reallocated grant funds to the 
Connective Services strategy during DCYF's January 2019 reallocation process 
as well as those funded under Connective Services through DCYF's Community 
Grants RFP. 
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Limited Duration ("no more than 12 months") - We operate year-round but ask 
youth/families to re-affirm their enrollment each summer for the next 12 
months. Is this sufficient? 

As stated on page 21 of the RFP "Programs may establish connections 
between staff and participants that lasts no more than twelve months. These 
connections should be designed to support the development and fostering of 
long term relationships with a goal of connecting participants to needed 
services and resources." The twelve month duration for services is based on 
when the services with the participant began rather than at a set time of the 
year. With participants potentially engaging with services throughout the year 
programs will need to have a way to monitor the duration of services for each 
participant with a goal to connect them to other needed resources on or 
before they have been engaged with the Connective Services program for 
twelve months. 

Re: Target Populations: a) Is it okay if we have youth under 10 years old in our 
budget or should we pro-rate our funding for 10 & above... and b) if we choose 
both populations (10-17) and (18-24), there is the question about adjusting 
recruitment methods and service delivery for each population, how much 
synergy is expected between them? 

A) The target populations for the Connective Services strategy are SF youth 
ages 10-17 and SF disconnected transitional age youth ages 18-24. Therefore 
applicants should limit the budget in their proposal to only cover services for 
youth who are within these age ranges. 
B) DCYF recognizes that programs would need to use different recruitment 
approaches to reach the two target populations for Connective Services. While 
it would be expected that some information provided to potential participants 
about the program would be the same for both groups it would also be 
expected that the methods used to reach these youth could vary considerably. 
Applicants will need to think about how they convey all the information 
needed to reach and engage participants while also customizing approaches to 
meet the needs of each population. 

Are organizations allowed to submit more than one proposal for difference 
programs that fit the same funding strategy?   

Yes, applicants can submit as many proposals as they'd like as long as they 
meet the requirements specified in the RFP.  
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Submitted Question DCYF Answer 

Should the programming that we are applying for run all year long? Can we ask 
for funding to fund a summer program and a school year program? 

DCYF has not specified whether services must occur during the school year, 
year round or both. Instead applicants can choose to propose the timeframe 
for their programs. 
Applicants can submit separate proposals that span the school year and the 
summer. However if the proposed programs are operating using the same 
model just with different sessions it would make sense to combine them into a 
single application.  

For Mentorship service area: 
 1. Program requirement #2 limits staff/participant connections to one year. 
Does this mean that staff mentoring relationships lasting more than one year 
are ineligible? If so, why, given the DCYF goal of fostering long-term 
relationships between caring adults and at-risk youth?  2. In our program 
model, mentoring relationships are established in-house more than with 
external agencies that help meet specific needs for housing, tutoring, 
healthcare, etc. Does this RFP presume that the more effective  long-term 
bonds will be between youth and adults at outside agencies? 3. Can  a long-
term relationship with staff at an external referral agency be longer than 12 
months under this RFP? Can you provide an example or two? 

1. The Connective Services strategy is specifically designed to utilize effective 
relationship building approaches to connect participants to services that meet 
their needs, either in house or at other agencies. The reason that relationships 
are limited to a 12 month period of time is to ensure that the connection to 
these services happens. Program models that include relationships that last 
longer than 12 months can be utilized by applicants however, DCYF funds will 
only support these relationships for the 12 month period of time specified by 
the RFP. 
2. This RFP does not presume that external relationships are more effective 
than those established in house. The reference to external services is included 
so that applicants know that they can connect participants to other agencies if 
the services needed are not present within their organizations. 
3. No, all grants funded under this strategy will be held to the same limited 
duration requirement specified in the RFP. 

As a current grantee, may our organization propose to provide services at 
schools in which we're currently delivering services under the FY18-23 ELS 
grant? Such services would be substantially different from those currently 
provided, in terms of target populations and modality.  

Yes, applicants can propose to provide services at schools where the agency is 
currently operating, especially if those services are substantially different. 

Also, under the Agency Profile, if an applicant is headquartered outside of San 
Francisco, should the Supervisor District question be left blank? Or should it be 
filled in with the district in which the majority of proposed services will be 
provided? 

Because the Supervisor District field is required applicants must include a 
selection to submit the page. Therefore, applicants headquartered outside of 
San Francisco should select the district where the majority of services will take 
place. 
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Does the service provider have to have physical offices in San Francisco? 
Though services for students will be provided in San Francisco, our physical 
offices are located in Oakland.  

No, the service provider does not have to have physical offices in San Francisco 
to be eligible to apply to this RFP. All services do have to take place in San 
Francisco and be provided to San Francisco residents. 

What is the maximum grant award we can submit under mentoring services? Applicants can apply for any amount of funding for the strategy as long as it 
does not exceed the total allocation. It should be noted however that if the 
proposal is funded DCYF may choose to award less than the total amount 
proposed by the applicant. 

For the new RFP, I understand we cannot apply to connective  services 
strategy after we submitted the reallocation application. However, can our 
agency apply the other category: ELS: Sports and physical activity?    

Yes, the restriction on applying to Connective Services for agencies that 
participated in DCYF's Justice Services Reallocation process does not apply to 
the Sports and Physical Activity strategy. 

Can current DCYF grantees apply for funding, to support a different age group 
of students not already funded by DCYF? 

Yes, current DCYF grantees can apply to support a different age group of 
students not already funded by DCYF. 

Is this grant open to programs currently receiving other grant funding from 
DCYF? 

Yes. Any potential applicants, including current grantees, who meet the 
requirements for the RFP listed in the document are welcome to apply. The 
only restriction to note for current grantees related to this RFP is listed on 
page 19 and states "Grantees funded under the Cultural Programming, Girls’ 
and Young Women’s Programming and Multi-Service strategies who 
reallocated grant funds to the Connective Services strategy during the January 
2019 reallocation process are not eligible to apply for funding under this 
strategy." 

Just wanted to ask if the current RFP would consider proposals for augmenting 
programs already funded in the 2019-2023 grant cycle. 

The answer to this question differs slightly for the two strategies in this RFP. 
For Sports and Physical Activity current grantees already funded under this 
strategy can apply to augment their programs. However, it should be noted 
that DCYF is generally looking to expand the reach of this funding strategy to 
provide a more diverse set of sports and physical activities. For Connective 
Services, current grantees either funded under this strategy during the 2018 
Community Grants RFP or those grantees who reallocated funds to this 
strategy during the Justice Services Reallocation process are not eligible to 
apply for funds under this RFP.  

 


